
Meeting is also available on Comcast Ch. 16 and streaming vod.maplewoodmn.gov  

AGENDA 
CITY OF MAPLEWOOD  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
7:00 P.M. Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

City Hall, Council Chambers  
1830 County Road B East 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. May 17, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

E. PUBLIC HEARING
1. Capital Improvement Plan 2023-2027
2. Conditional Use Permit and Setback Variance Resolution, HAB Automotive, 47 Century

Avenue North
3. Conditional Use Permit Resolution, NeuroRestorative, 822 McKnight Road

F. NEW BUSINESS
1. Election of Officers (No Report)

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None

H. COMMISSION PRESENTATIONS

I. STAFF PRESENTATIONS
1. Concept Plan Review, 3090 Southlawn Drive (No Report)

J. VISITOR PRESENTATIONS – 3 minute time limit per person

K. ADJOURNMENT



WELCOME TO THIS MEETING OF THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

This outline has been prepared to help you understand the public meeting process. 
The review of an item usually takes the following form: 

1. The chairperson of the meeting will announce the item to be reviewed and ask for the
staff report on the subject.

2. Staff presents their report on the matter.

3. The Commission will then ask City staff questions about the proposal.

4. The chairperson will then ask the audience if there is anyone present who wishes to
comment on the proposal.

5. This is the time for the public to make comments or ask questions about the proposal.
Please step up to the podium and speak clearly. Give your name and address first and
then your comments.

6. After everyone in the audience wishing to speak has given his or her comments, the
chairperson will close the public discussion portion of the meeting.

7. The Commission will then discuss the proposal. No further public comments are allowed.

8. The Commission will then make its recommendation or decision.

9. All decisions by the Planning Commission are recommendations to the City Council. The
City Council makes the final decision.

“Welcome to the meeting of the Maplewood Planning Commission. It is our desire to 
keep all discussions civil as we work through difficult issues tonight. If you are here for a 
Public Hearing or to address the Planning Commission, please familiarize yourself with 
the Policies and Procedures and Rules of Civility, which are located near the entrance. At 
the podium please state your name and address clearly for the record.” 

Revised: 02/18 



May 17, 2022 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

1 

MINUTES 
MAPLEWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 P.M. Tuesday, May 17, 2022 
City Hall, Council Chambers 
1830 County Road B East 

A. CALL TO ORDER

A meeting of the Commission was held and called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Chairperson Arbuckle

B. ROLL CALL

Paul Arbuckle, Chairperson Present 
Frederick Dahm, Commissioner Present 
Tushar Desai, Vice Chairperson Present 
John Eads, Commissioner Present 
Allan Ige, Commissioner Present 
Sheryl Sukolsky, Commissioner Absent 
Lue Yang, Commissioner Present 

Staff Present:  Michael Martin, Assistant Community Development Director 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Commissioner Ige moved to approve the agenda as presented.

Seconded by Commissioner Yang. Ayes – All 

The motion passed. 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of March 15, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

Commissioner Desai moved to approve the March 15, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting 
Minutes as submitted. 

Seconded by Commissioner Eads.   Ayes – Arbuckle, Dahm, Desai, Eads, 
& Yang 

Abstain – Ige 
The motion passed. 

E. PUBLIC HEARING
1. Home Occupation License, Living Long Hair, 1973 Barclay Street

Michael Martin, Assistant Community Development Director, gave the report on the Home 
Occupation License for Living Long Hair, 1973 Barclay Street and answered questions of the 
Commission. 

Chairperson Arbuckle opened the public hearing. 

D1

PC Packet Page Number 1 of 57



May 17, 2022 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

2 

Kristi Long, the property owner/applicant for Living Long Hair, 1973 Barclay Street addressed and 
answered questions of the commission. 

Maplewood Resident, Frances Juker, 1965 Barclay Street, spoke as a neighbor to the applicant. 
Ms. Juker requested to have the hours of operation 5:30 – 8:30 p.m., no weekends and by 
appointment only stated in the home occupation license documentation. 

The applicant address those concerns and didn’t think there were would be any issues. The 
commission did not think the stipulations needed to be included in the license. If there are issues 
in the future the city clerk can withhold the renewal of the home occupation license.  

Chairperson Arbuckle closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Eads moved to approve the home occupation license for Living Long Hair Studio 
located at 1973 Barclay Street, subject to certain conditions of approval listed in the staff report. 

Seconded by Commissioner Desai.  Ayes – All 

The motion passed. 

This item will go to the city council on June 13, 2022. 

2. Conditional Use Permit Amendment and Setback Variance Resolution MG McGrath
Inc., 1387 Cope Ave East

Michael Martin, Assistant Community Development Director, gave the report on the Conditional 
Use Permit Amendment and Setback Variance Resolution for MG McGrath Inc., 1387 Cope Ave 
East and answered questions of the commission. 

Chairperson Arbuckle opened the public hearing. 

Applicant, Tim Sauro of MG McGrath Inc., 1387 Cope Ave East, addressed and answered 
questions of the commission. 

Chairperson Arbuckle closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Desai moved to approve a resolution for a conditional use permit amendment and 
setback variance permitting exterior storage and a parking lot expansion for MG McGrath Inc.’s 
property located at 1387 Cope Ave East. 

Seconded by Commissioner Ige. Ayes – Arbuckle, Dahm, 
Desai, Ige, Yang 

Nay - Eads 

The motion passed. 

Commissioner Eads stated he was uncomfortable with the amount of exterior storage here. He 
felt the parking lot extension seemed to be pretty minor input for the employees satisfaction 
verses what they have worked out with the other business during the day. He disapproves the 
need for more asphalt and tree removal and other environmental concerns. 

This item will go to the city council on June 13, 2022. 

D1

PC Packet Page Number 2 of 57



May 17, 2022 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

3 

F. NEW BUSINESS

None

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None

H. COMMISSION PRESENTATIONS

None

I. STAFF PRESENTATIONS

None

J. VISITOR PRESENTATIONS

Maplewood Resident, Dianne Dahm, 1276 County Road C East had expressed her opposition to
the proposed Purple Line BRT Project in Maplewood.

K. ADJOURNMENT

Chairperson Arbuckle adjourned the meeting at 7:49 p.m.

D1

PC Packet Page Number 3 of 57



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PC Packet Page Number 4 of 57



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date July 19, 2022 

REPORT TO: 

REPORT FROM: 

PRESENTER: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Melinda Coleman, City Manager 

Ellen Paulseth, Finance Director 

Ellen Paulseth, Finance Director

Capital Improvement Plan 2023-2027  

Action Requested:  Motion Discussion  Public Hearing
Form of Action: Resolution  Ordinance Contract/Agreement  Proclamation

Policy Issue: 
The Capital Improvement Plan coordinates the planning, financing and timing of major equipment 
purchases and construction projects.  By law, the Planning Commission must review the CIP.  The 
City Council will consider the adoption of the CIP along with the 2023 budget in December.  The role 
of the Planning Commission is to ensure that the projects included within the plan are in alignment 
with the Comprehensive Plan and other planning processes. 

Recommended Action: 
Staff recommends the approval of the draft Capital Improvement Plan by the Planning Commission. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Is There a Fiscal Impact?  No  Yes, the true or estimated cost is $64,802,155 

Financing source(s):  Adopted Budget  Budget Modification  New Revenue Source 
Use of Reserves  Other:  N/A

Strategic Plan Relevance: 
Community Inclusiveness Financial & Asset Mgmt Environmental Stewardship
Integrated Communication Operational Effectiveness Targeted Redevelopment

An analysis of projected debt is included in the presentation, indicating the City’s ability to accomplish 
the recommended projects within the framework of the City’s existing debt policy.   

Background: 
The City Council will hold a public hearing prior to adoption of the plan. The CIP will be available on 
the City’s webpage.   

Attachments: 
1. PowerPoint
2. List of CIP Projects by Department and Funding Source

E1

PC Packet Page Number 5 of 57



De
bt

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
iss

io
n

Ju
ly 

19
, 2

02
2

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 6 of 57



Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

W
or

ks
ho

p 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

•E
ns

ur
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
re

 in
 a

lig
nm

en
t w

ith
 co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 7 of 57



Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

Pr
oc

es
s

Ca
pi
ta
lN

ee
ds

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n

Lo
ng

Ra
ng
e

St
ra
te
gi
cP

la
n

Fu
nd

in
g

So
ur
ce
s

Id
en

tif
ie
d

Fi
ve

Ye
ar

CI
P

Pl
an

An
nu

al
Ca
pi
ta
l

Bu
dg
et

CI
P

Im
pl
em

en
ta
tio

n

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 8 of 57



Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

Fin
an

cin
g

Ve
hi

cle
s a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
Pa

y-
as

-y
ou

-g
o 

(P
AY

G)
Ta

x e
xe

m
pt

 le
as

e

Bu
ild

in
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fu
nd

s
De

bt

St
re

et
s a

nd
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

De
bt

Fr
an

ch
ise

 F
ee

s
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
id

M
un

ici
pa

l S
ta

te
 A

id

Pa
rk

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pa
rk

 D
ed

ica
tio

n 
Fe

es
De

bt

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Ta

x I
nc

re
m

en
t F

in
an

cin
g

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 9 of 57



Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

Gu
id

in
g 

Pr
in

cip
le

s
•C

ou
nc

il P
rio

rit
ie

s
•D

eb
t R

ed
uc

tio
n

•S
tre

et
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
•L

ev
er

ag
e 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t A

id
 (L

GA
)

•P
ay

-A
s-

Yo
u-

Go
•S

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y

•E
co

no
m

ic 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
•B

al
an

ce

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 10 of 57



20
23

-2
02

7 
Ca

pi
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 T

im
el

in
e

Ju
ne

 2
7,

 2
02

2
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il C
IP

 W
or

ks
ho

p
Ju

ly 
19

, 2
02

2
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

iss
io

n 
He

ar
in

g
De

ce
m

be
r 1

2,
 2

02
2

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il C

IP
 H

ea
rin

g
De

ce
m

be
r 1

2,
 2

02
2

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il C

IP
 A

do
pt

io
n 

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 11 of 57



Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

e 
Ca

pi
ta

l 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
nn

in
g 

Do
cu

m
en

t f
or

 5
 Y

ea
rs

Do
es

 n
ot

 a
ut

ho
riz

e e
xp

en
dit

ur
es

Co
un

cil
 m

us
t a

ut
ho

riz
e e

ac
h 

ite
m

 p
rio

r t
o 

sp
en

din
g

Ad
op

tio
n 

Re
qu

ire
d 

to
 Is

su
e 

De
bt

 to
 F

in
an

ce
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
, §

M
.S

. 4
75

.5
21

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 12 of 57



20
23

–2
02

7 
Ca

pi
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 C

IP
 P

ro
je

ct
s b

y 
Ca

te
go

ry
Ca

te
go
ry

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

To
ta
l

Bu
ild

in
gs

26
5,
00
0

16
0,
00
0

25
0,
00
0

25
0,
00
0

25
0,
00
0

1,
17
5,
00
0

Eq
ui
pm

en
t

1,
44
2,
70
0

2,
20
9,
80
0

1,
35
4,
35
0

1,
03
8,
85
0

1,
00
4,
05
0

7,
04
9,
75
0

Pa
rk
s

1,
53
0,
00
0

93
0,
00
0

1,
65
5,
00
0

40
5,
00
0

16
5,
00
0

4,
68
5,
00
0

Re
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

10
0,
00
0

1,
10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

1,
10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

2,
50
0,
00
0

St
re
et
s

9,
33
4,
27
1

10
,1
77
,0
00

9,
10
1,
13
4

11
,3
00
,0
00

9,
48
0,
00
0

49
,3
92
,4
05

TO
TA

L
12
,6
71
,9
71

14
,5
76
,8
00

12
,4
60
,4
84

14
,0
93
,8
50

10
,9
99
,0
50

64
,8
02
,1
55

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 13 of 57



20
23

-2
02

7 
St

re
et

 C
IP

 P
la

ns
•P

ro
po

se
d 

CI
P 

M
ile

s f
or

 2
02

3-
20

27
18

.7
7 

M
ile

s o
f P

ro
po

se
d 

St
re

et
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

13
.9

%
 o

f C
ity

 S
tre

et
s

•S
po

t P
av

in
g

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 F

ix 
Un

til
 a

 C
IP

 P
ro

je
ct

 
is 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pr
ov

id
e 

Re
lie

f a
nd

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
Le

ve
l o

f S
er

vic
e

Ad
d 

An
nu

al
 S

po
t P

av
in

g 
to

 
Pa

ve
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ra

ct
ice

s
Re

co
m

m
en

d 
$8

0,
00

0/
ye

ar
 fr

om
 

th
e 

SR
F 

Fu
nd

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 14 of 57



20
23

 S
tre

et
 C

IP
 P

ro
je

ct
s

•M
yr

tle
/S

te
rli

ng
 A

re
a 

St
re

et
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$4

,13
0,

00
0 

(1.
56

 M
ile

s)
PC

I r
at

in
g 

36
/1

00

•W
oo

dl
yn

n/
So

ut
hl

aw
n

Ar
ea

 P
av

em
en

t
$4

,8
60

,3
50

 (1
.7

7M
ile

s)
PC

I r
at

in
g 

43
/1

00

To
ta

l M
ile

s o
f 2

02
3 

St
re

et
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 =

 3
.3

3 

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 15 of 57



O
th

er
 M

aj
or

 P
ro

je
ct

s 2
02

3-
20

27

•G
la

ds
to

ne
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t
•P

ar
k 

Up
gr

ad
es

 (G
oo

dr
ich

 in
 2

02
3)

•O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

•N
at

ur
e 

Ce
nt

er
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
•F

ac
ilit

y 
Up

gr
ad

es
•L

ift
 S

ta
tio

n 
Up

gr
ad

es
•R

ice
 S

tre
et

 (R
am

se
y 

Co
un

ty
)

•C
ou

nt
y 

Ro
ad

 C
 

•W
hi

te
 B

ea
r A

ve
/L

ar
pe

nt
eu

r(
Ra

m
se

y 
Co

un
ty

)

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 16 of 57



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
iss

io
n 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
Do

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 C
on

fo
rm

 w
ith

 th
e 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Pl

an
 

an
d 

ot
he

r P
la

nn
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

se
s?

20
23

 C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
s

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 17 of 57



Q
ue

st
io

ns
?

E1, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 18 of 57



De
pa

rt
m
en

t
Re

qu
es
tT

itl
e

FY
20

23
FY
20

24
FY
20

25
FY
20

26
FY
20

27
To

ta
l

Co
m
m
un

ity
De

ve
lo
pm

en
t

Gl
ad
st
on

e
Re

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t

1,
00

0,
00
0

1,
00

0,
00
0

2,
00

0,
00
0

Ho
us
in
g
Re

pl
ac
em

en
tP

ro
gr
am

10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

50
0,
00
0

To
ta
lC
om

m
un

ity
De

ve
lo
pm

en
t

10
0,
00
0

1,
10

0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

1,
10

0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

2,
50

0,
00
0

Fi
re

Fi
re

Sq
ua
d
Re

pl
ac
em

en
ts

59
,0
00

62
,0
00

65
,0
00

68
,0
00

71
,0
00

32
5,
00
0

Po
lic
e
&
Fi
re

80
0
M
Hz

Ra
di
os

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

45
0,
00
0

Gr
as
sT

ru
ck

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t

85
,0
00

85
,0
00

La
dd

er
Tr
uc
k
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

Fi
re

En
gi
ne

/T
an
ke
rR

ep
la
ce
m
en

t
87

5,
00
0

87
5,
00
0

Fi
re

Fi
gh
tin

g
Tu
rn

O
ut

Ge
ar

96
,0
00

96
,0
00

Am
bu

la
nc
e
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

28
2,
00
0

28
7,
00
0

56
9,
00
0

EM
S
Ca
rd
ia
cM

on
ito

rs
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

21
4,
00
0

21
4,
00
0

To
ta
lF
ire

54
4,
00
0

1,
30

9,
00
0

44
2,
00
0

15
8,
00
0

16
1,
00
0

2,
61

4,
00
0

Pa
rk
sa

nd
Re

cr
ea
tio

n
So
la
rP

an
el
sa

nd
El
ec
tr
ic
Ve

hi
cle

Ch
ar
gi
ng

St
at
io
n
fo
rW

ak
ef
ie
ld
Bu

ild
in
g

10
0,
00

0
10

0,
00
0

Ha
ze
lw
oo

d
Pa
rk

50
,0
00

50
0,
00
0

55
0,
00
0

Pi
cn
ic
Sh
el
te
rs
in
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Ar
ea

Ne
ig
hb

or
ho

od
s

25
0,
00

0
25

0,
00
0

50
0,
00
0

M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Na

tu
re

Ce
nt
er

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

Fi
sh

Cr
ee
k
O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e

30
0,
00
0

30
0,
00
0

Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

an
d
Re

In
ve
st
m
en

t
1,
00

0,
00
0

1,
00

0,
00
0

Ha
rv
es
tP

ar
k

30
0,
00
0

30
0,
00
0

Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

&
Re

in
ve
st
m
en

t
1,
00

0,
00
0

1,
00

0,
00
0

O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e
Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

50
,0
00

50
,0
00

25
,0
00

25
,0
00

25
,0
00

17
5,
00
0

Pa
rk

Up
gr
ad
es

to
Ex
ist
in
g
Pa
rk
s

13
0,
00
0

13
0,
00
0

13
0,
00
0

13
0,
00
0

14
0,
00
0

66
0,
00
0

To
ta
lP
ar
ks

an
d
Re

cr
ea
tio

n
1,
53

0,
00
0

93
0,
00
0

1,
65

5,
00
0

40
5,
00
0

16
5,
00
0

4,
68

5,
00
0

Po
lic
e

Sq
ua
d
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

1,
37

5,
00
0

To
ta
lP
ol
ic
e

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

27
5,
00
0

1,
37

5,
00
0

Pu
bl
ic
W
or
ks

Go
ld
Lin

e
Pe

de
st
ria

n
Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

24
1,
13
4

24
1,
13
4

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

3,
67

0,
00
0

3,
67

0,
00
0

Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

5,
27

0,
00
0

5,
27

0,
00
0

Un
it
62

0
Em

er
ge
nc
y
Se
w
er

Pu
m
p

63
,0
00

63
,0
00

Un
it
51

1
SU

V
27

,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
51

6
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
64

5
Ha

lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
54

1
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

84
,0
00

84
,0
00

Un
it
73

2
an
d
Un

it
73

7:
Tw

o
To
ol
ca
tW

or
k
M
ac
hi
ne

s
94

,5
00

94
,5
00

Un
it
65

0
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

97
,6
50

97
,6
50

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
B/
I3

5E
St
or
m

W
at
er

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

10
0,
00
0

10
0,
00
0

Un
it
64

3
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

97
,6
50

97
,6
50

Un
it
71

4
St
re
et

Sw
ee
pe

r
25

6,
20
0

25
6,
20
0

Un
it
53

0
Si
ng
le
Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00
0

25
2,
00
0

Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

Ro
of

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t

16
0,
00
0

16
0,
00
0

So
ut
h
Le
g
Pa
ve
m
en

tR
eh

ab
ili
ta
tio

n
2,
56

0,
00

0
2,
56

0,
00
0

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

8,
96

0,
00
0

8,
96

0,
00
0

M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

4,
13

0,
00
0

4,
13

0,
00
0

W
hi
te

Be
ar

Av
e/
La
rp
en

te
ur

Av
e
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

90
7,
00
0

90
7,
00
0

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
D
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

17
0,
00
0

17
0,
00
0

M
cK
ni
gh
tT

ra
ffi
cS

ig
na
lR
ep

la
ce
m
en

t
32

3,
92

1
32

3,
92

1

20
23

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Ca
pi
ta
lI
m
pr
ov
em

en
tP

la
n
by

De
pa

rt
m
en

t
E1, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 19 of 57



De
pa

rt
m
en

t
Re

qu
es
tT

itl
e

FY
20

23
FY
20

24
FY
20

25
FY
20

26
FY
20

27
To

ta
l

Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

7,
31

0,
00
0

7,
31

0,
00
0

Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

6,
28

0,
00
0

6,
28

0,
00
0

W
al
te
r/
Be

am
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
2,
04

0,
00
0

2,
04

0,
00
0

M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Dr
./C

yp
re
ss
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
1,
73

0,
00
0

1,
73

0,
00
0

W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
4,
86

0,
35
0

4,
86

0,
35
0

Ri
ce

St
re
et

52
0,
00
0

52
0,
00
0

Un
it
61

1
an
d
Un

it
53

1:
Tw

o
1/
2
To
n
Tr
uc
ks

56
,7
00

56
,7
00

Un
it
65

4:
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

44
,1
00

44
,1
00

Un
it
65

3
an
d
Un

it
54

5:
Tw

o
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

s
88

,2
00

88
,2
00

Un
it
62

1
Ha

lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
54

0
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

94
,5
00

94
,5
00

Un
it
61

4
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

63
,0
00

63
,0
00

Un
it
62

3
CC

TV
Tr
uc
k

16
8,
00
0

16
8,
00
0

Un
it
71

7
Fr
on

tE
nd

Lo
ad
er

31
5,
00
0

31
5,
00
0

Un
it
53

6
Si
ng
le
Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00
0

25
2,
00
0

Un
it
71

5
10

,0
00

lb
.C
ap
ac
ity

Tr
ai
le
r

15
,7
50

15
,7
50

Un
it
64

2
Th
re
e
Q
ua
rt
er

To
n
Va

n
26

,2
50

26
,2
50

Un
it
53

9
Si
ng
le
Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00
0

25
2,
00
0

Un
it
51

2
Ha

lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
50

0
Th
re
e
Q
ua
rt
er

To
n
Tr
uc
k

57
,7
50

57
,7
50

Un
it
53

2
Si
ng
le

Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00
0

25
2,
00
0

Po
nd

Cl
ea
ni
ng
/D
re
dg
in
g
Pr
oj
ec
ts

11
0,
00
0

11
0,
00
0

22
0,
00
0

Lif
tS

ta
tio

n
Up

gr
ad
e
Pr
og
ra
m

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

10
0,
00
0

Pu
bl
ic
W
or
ks

Si
te

Pa
vi
ng

18
0,
00
0

18
0,
00
0

Em
er
ge
nc
y
Ge

ne
ra
to
rR

ep
la
ce
m
en

t
85

,0
00

85
,0
00

M
un

ici
pa
lF
ac
ili
ty

Up
gr
ad
es

25
0,
00
0

25
0,
00
0

25
0,
00
0

75
0,
00
0

Un
it
65

8
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

84
,0
00

84
,0
00

Un
it
71

0
Ba

ck
ho

e/
Lo
ad
er

21
0,
00
0

21
0,
00
0

To
ta
lP
ub

lic
W
or
k s

10
,2
22

,9
71

10
,9
62

,8
00

9,
98

8,
48
4

12
,1
55

,8
50

10
,2
98

,0
50

53
,6
28

,1
55

To
ta
lb
y
De

pa
rt
m
en

t
12

,6
71

,9
71

14
,5
76

,8
00

12
,4
60

,4
84

14
,0
93

,8
50

10
,9
99

,0
50

64
,8
02

,1
55

E1, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 20 of 57



Fu
nd

in
g
So
ur
ce

Re
qu

es
tT

itl
e

FY
20

23
FY
20

24
FY
20

25
FY
20

26
FY
20

27
To

ta
l

Am
bu

la
nc
e
Fu
nd

Am
bu

la
nc
e
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

28
2,
00

0
28

7,
00

0
56

9,
00

0
EM

S
Ca
rd
ia
cM

on
ito

rs
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

21
4,
00

0
21

4,
00

0
To

ta
lA

m
bu

la
nc
e
Fu
nd

21
4,
00

0
28

2,
00

0
28

7,
00

0
78

3,
00

0

Bu
ild

in
g
Fu
nd

Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

Ro
of

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t

16
0,
00

0
16

0,
00

0
Pu

bl
ic
W
or
ks

Si
te

Pa
vi
ng

18
0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
M
un

ici
pa
lF
ac
ili
ty

Up
gr
ad
es

25
0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
75

0,
00

0
To

ta
lB

ui
ld
in
g
Fu
nd

18
0,
00

0
16

0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
1,
09

0,
00

0

Ca
pi
ta
lI
m
pr
ov
em

en
tF

un
d

So
la
rP

an
el
sa

nd
El
ec
tr
ic
Ve

hi
cle

Ch
ar
gi
ng

St
at
io
n
fo
rW

ak
ef
ie
ld
Bu

ild
in
g

50
,0
00

50
,0
00

Po
lic
e
&
Fi
re

80
0
M
Hz

Ra
di
os

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

90
,0
00

45
0,
00

0
Pa
rk

Up
gr
ad
es

to
Ex
ist
in
g
Pa
rk
s

13
0,
00

0
13

0,
00

0
13

0,
00

0
13

0,
00

0
14

0,
00

0
66

0,
00

0
To

ta
lC
ap

ita
lI
m
pr
ov
em

en
tF

un
d

22
0,
00

0
22

0,
00

0
27

0,
00

0
22

0,
00

0
23

0,
00

0
1,
16

0,
00

0

ED
A
Fu
nd

Ho
us
in
g
Re

pl
ac
em

en
tP

ro
gr
am

10
0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
50

0,
00

0
To

ta
lE
DA

Fu
nd

10
0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
50

0,
00

0

En
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
lU

til
ity

Fu
nd

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

68
8,
40

0
68

8,
40

0
Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

1,
10

0,
00

0
1,
10

0,
00

0
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

B/
I3

5E
St
or
m

W
at
er

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

10
0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
So
ut
h
Le
g
Pa
ve
m
en

tR
eh

ab
ili
ta
tio

n
25

6,
00

0
25

6,
00

0
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

1,
87

3,
00

0
1,
87

3,
00

0
M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

83
5,
40

0
83

5,
40

0
Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

1,
59

1,
00

0
1,
59

1,
00

0
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

1,
18

7,
00

0
1,
18

7,
00

0
W
al
te
r/
Be

am
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
20

4,
00

0
20

4,
00

0
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Dr
./C

yp
re
ss
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
17

3,
00

0
17

3,
00

0
W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
85

6,
40

0
85

6,
40

0
Po

nd
Cl
ea
ni
ng
/D
re
dg
in
g
Pr
oj
ec
ts

11
0,
00

0
11

0,
00

0
22

0,
00

0
So
la
rP

an
el
sa

nd
El
ec
tr
ic
Ve

hi
cle

Ch
ar
gi
ng

St
at
io
n
fo
rW

ak
ef
ie
ld
Bu

ild
in
g

50
,0
00

50
,0
00

To
ta
lE
nv
iro

nm
en

ta
lU

til
ity

Fu
nd

1,
69

1,
80
0

1,
97

4,
00
0

1,
49

3,
00
0

2,
18

7,
00
0

1,
78

8,
40
0

9,
13

4,
20
0

Fl
ee
tF

un
d

Un
it
62

0
Em

er
ge
nc
y
Se
w
er

Pu
m
p

63
,0
00

63
,0
00

Un
it
51

1
SU

V
27

,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
51

6
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
64

5
Ha

lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
54

1
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

84
,0
00

84
,0
00

Un
it
73

2
an
d
Un

it
73

7:
Tw

o
To
ol
ca
tW

or
k
M
ac
hi
ne

s
94

,5
00

94
,5
00

Un
it
65

0
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

97
,6
50

97
,6
50

Un
it
64

3
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

97
,6
50

97
,6
50

Un
it
71

4
St
re
et

Sw
ee
pe

r
25

6,
20

0
25

6,
20

0
Un

it
53

0
Si
ng
le
Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
Un

it
61

1
an
d
Un

it
53

1:
Tw

o
1/
2
To
n
Tr
uc
ks

56
,7
00

56
,7
00

Un
it
65

4:
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

44
,1
00

44
,1
00

Un
it
65

3
an
d
Un

it
54

5:
Tw

o
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

s
88

,2
00

88
,2
00

Un
it
62

1
Ha

lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
54

0
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

94
,5
00

94
,5
00

Un
it
61

4
O
ne

an
d
O
ne

Ha
lf
To
n
Du

m
p
Tr
uc
k

63
,0
00

63
,0
00

20
23

20
27

Ca
pi
ta
lI
m
pr
ov
em

en
tP

la
n
by

Fu
nd

in
g
So
ur
ce

E1, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 21 of 57



Fu
nd

in
g
So
ur
ce

Re
qu

es
tT

itl
e

FY
20

23
FY
20

24
FY
20

25
FY
20

26
FY
20

27
To

ta
l

Un
it
62

3
CC

TV
Tr
uc
k

16
8,
00

0
16

8,
00

0
Un

it
71

7
Fr
on

tE
nd

Lo
ad
er

31
5,
00

0
31

5,
00

0
Un

it
53

6
Si
ng
le
Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
Un

it
71

5
10

,0
00

lb
.C

ap
ac
ity

Tr
ai
le
r

15
,7
50

15
,7
50

Un
it
64

2
Th
re
e
Q
ua
rt
er

To
n
Va

n
26

,2
50

26
,2
50

Un
it
53

9
Si
ng
le
Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
Un

it
51

2
Ha

lf
To
n
Tr
uc
k

27
,3
00

27
,3
00

Un
it
50

0
Th
re
e
Q
ua
rt
er

To
n
Tr
uc
k

57
,7
50

57
,7
50

Un
it
53

2
Si
ng
le

Ax
le
Pl
ow

Tr
uc
k

25
2,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
Un

it
65

8
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

M
ac
hi
ne

84
,0
00

84
,0
00

Un
it
71

0
Ba

ck
ho

e/
Lo
ad
e r

21
0,
00

0
21

0,
00

0
To

ta
lF
le
et

Fu
nd

62
3,
70

0
62

5,
80

0
63

7,
35

0
60

5,
85

0
56

8,
05

0
3,
06

0,
75
0

G.
O
.B

on
ds

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t

Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

2,
13

9,
60

0
2,
13

9,
60

0
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

4,
93

0,
80

0
4,
93

0,
80

0
M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

2,
02

4,
22

5
2,
02

4,
22

5
Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

3,
82

1,
20

0
3,
82

1,
20

0
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

2,
68

7,
00

0
2,
68

7,
00

0
W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
85

1,
89

5
85

1,
89

5
To

ta
lG

.O
.B

on
ds

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t

2,
87

6,
12
0

3,
82

1,
20
0

2,
68

7,
00
0

4,
93

0,
80
0

2,
13

9,
60
0

16
,4
54

,7
20

G.
O
.B

on
ds

Ta
x
Ab

at
em

en
t

Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

an
d
Re

In
ve
st
m
en

t
1,
00

0,
00

0
1,
00

0,
00

0
Pa
rk

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

&
Re

in
ve
st
m
en

t
1,
00

0,
00

0
1,
00

0,
00

0
To

ta
lG

.O
.B

on
ds

Ta
x
Ab

at
em

en
t

1,
00

0,
00
0

1,
00

0,
00
0

2,
00

0,
00
0

G.
O
.B

on
ds

Ta
x
In
cr
em

en
t

Gl
ad
st
on

e
Re

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t

1,
00

0,
00

0
1,
00

0,
00

0
2,
00

0,
00

0
To

ta
lG

.O
.B

on
ds

Ta
x
In
cr
em

en
t

1,
00

0,
00
0

1,
00

0,
00
0

2,
00

0,
00
0

M
CC

Ca
pi
ta
lF
un

d
Em

er
ge
nc
y
Ge

ne
ra
to
rR

ep
la
ce
m
en

t
85

,0
00

85
,0
00

To
ta
lM

CC
Ca

pi
ta
lF
un

d
85

,0
00

85
,0
00

M
un

ic
ip
al
St
at
e
Ai
d

Go
ld
Lin

e
Pe

de
st
ria

n
Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

24
1,
13

4
24

1,
13

4
W
hi
te

Be
ar

Av
e/
La
rp
en

te
ur

Av
e
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

90
7,
00

0
90

7,
00

0
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

D
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

17
0,
00

0
17

0,
00

0
Ri
ce

St
re
et

52
0,
00

0
52

0,
00

0
To

ta
lM

un
ic
ip
al
St
at
e
Ai
d

90
7,
00

0
24

1,
13
4

17
0,
00

0
52

0,
00

0
1,
83

8,
13
4

Pa
rk

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tF

un
d

Ha
ze
lw
oo

d
Pa
rk

50
0,
00

0
50

0,
00

0
Pi
cn
ic
Sh
el
te
rs
in
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Ar
ea

Ne
ig
hb

or
ho

od
s

25
0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
50

0,
00

0
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Na

tu
re

Ce
nt
er

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

10
0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
Fi
sh

Cr
ee
k
O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e

15
0,
00

0
15

0,
00

0
Ha

rv
es
tP

ar
k

30
0,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e
Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

50
,0
00

50
,0
00

25
,0
00

25
,0
00

25
,0
00

17
5,
00

0
To

ta
lP
ar
k
Im

pr
ov
em

en
tF

un
d

35
0,
00

0
80

0,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
25

,0
00

1,
72

5,
00

0

Pu
bl
ic
Sa
fe
ty

Eq
ui
pm

en
tF

un
d

Fi
re

Sq
ua
d
Re

pl
ac
em

en
ts

59
,0
00

62
,0
00

65
,0
00

68
,0
00

71
,0
00

32
5,
00

0
Sq
ua
d
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

27
5,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
1,
37

5,
00

0
Gr
as
sT

ru
ck

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t

85
,0
00

85
,0
00

La
dd

er
Tr
uc
k
Re

pl
ac
em

en
t

E1, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 22 of 57



Fu
nd

in
g
So
ur
ce

Re
qu

es
tT

itl
e

FY
20

23
FY
20

24
FY
20

25
FY
20

26
FY
20

27
To

ta
l

Fi
re

En
gi
ne

/T
an
ke
rR

ep
la
ce
m
en

t
87

5,
00

0
87

5,
00

0
Fi
re

Fi
gh
tin

g
Tu
rn

O
ut

Ge
ar

96
,0
00

96
,0
00

To
ta
lP
ub

lic
Sa
fe
ty

Eq
ui
pm

en
tF

un
d

51
5,
00

0
1,
21

2,
00
0

34
0,
00

0
34

3,
00

0
34

6,
00

0
2,
75

6,
00
0

Ra
m
se
y
Co

un
ty

Fi
sh

Cr
ee
k
O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e

15
0,
00

0
15

0,
00

0
To

ta
lR

am
se
y
Co

un
ty

15
0,
00

0
15

0,
00

0

SR
F
Sp
ec
ia
lA

ss
es
sm

en
t

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

33
9,
19

4
33

9,
19

4
Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

58
5,
00

0
58

5,
00

0
So
ut
h
Le
g
Pa
ve
m
en

tR
eh

ab
ili
ta
tio

n
68

6,
56

1
68

6,
56

1
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

85
7,
50

0
85

7,
50

0
M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

55
9,
17

5
55

9,
17

5
Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

69
3,
40

0
69

3,
40

0
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

48
2,
00

0
48

2,
00

0
W
al
te
r/
Be

am
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
70

0,
35

0
70

0,
35

0
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Dr
./C

yp
re
ss
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
76

0,
51

8
76

0,
51

8
W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
83

2,
69

2
83

2,
69

2
To

ta
lS
RF

Sp
ec
ia
lA

ss
es
sm

en
t

1,
39

1,
86

7
1,
45

3,
91

8
1,
16

8,
56

1
1,
55

7,
85

0
92

4,
19
4

6,
49

6,
39
0

Sa
ni
ta
ry

Se
w
er

Fu
nd

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

23
8,
90

0
23

8,
90

0
Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

59
7,
00

0
59

7,
00

0
So
ut
h
Le
g
Pa
ve
m
en

tR
eh

ab
ili
ta
tio

n
12

8,
00

0
12

8,
00

0
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

70
0,
00

0
70

0,
00

0
M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

27
6,
90

0
27

6,
90

0
Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

59
0,
00

0
59

0,
00

0
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

48
0,
00

0
48

0,
00

0
W
al
te
r/
Be

am
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
10

2,
00

0
10

2,
00

0
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Dr
./C

yp
re
ss
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
86

,5
00

86
,5
00

W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
28

2,
80

0
28

2,
80

0
Lif
tS

ta
tio

n
Up

gr
ad
e
Pr
og
ra
m

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

20
,0
00

10
0,
00

0
To

ta
lS
an

ita
ry

Se
w
er

Fu
nd

57
9,
70

0
69

6,
50

0
62

8,
00

0
82

2,
00

0
85

5,
90

0
3,
58

2,
10
0

St
.P

au
lR

eg
io
na

lW
at
er

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

41
2,
80

0
41

2,
80

0
Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

59
6,
40

0
59

6,
40

0
Co

un
ty

Ro
ad

C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

25
4,
70

0
25

4,
70

0
M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

24
0,
00

0
24

0,
00

0
Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

26
0,
40

0
26

0,
40

0
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

64
8,
00

0
64

8,
00

0
To

ta
lS
t.
Pa

ul
Re

gi
on

al
W
at
er

24
0,
00

0
26

0,
40

0
64

8,
00

0
25

4,
70

0
1,
00

9,
20

0
2,
41

2,
30
0

St
re
et

Li
gh
tF

un
d

M
cK
ni
gh
tT

ra
ffi
cS

ig
na
lR
ep

la
ce
m
en

t
32

3,
92

1
32

3,
92

1
To

ta
lS
tr
ee
tL
ig
ht

Fu
nd

32
3,
92

1
32

3,
92

1

St
re
et

Re
vi
ta
liz
at
io
n
Fu
nd

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

1,
81

4,
20

6
1,
81

4,
20

6
So
ut
h
Le
g
Pa
ve
m
en

tR
eh

ab
ili
ta
tio

n
1,
41

2,
63

9
1,
41

2,
63

9
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

52
5,
00

0
52

5,
00

0
W
al
te
r/
Be

am
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
97

2,
45

0
97

2,
45

0
M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Dr
./C

yp
re
ss
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
65

8,
08

2
65

8,
08

2
W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
1,
82

2,
66

3
1,
82

2,
66

3

E1, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 23 of 57



Fu
nd

in
g
So
ur
ce

Re
qu

es
tT

itl
e

FY
20

23
FY
20

24
FY
20

25
FY
20

26
FY
20

27
To

ta
l

To
ta
lS
tr
ee
tR

ev
ita

liz
at
io
n
Fu
nd

1,
82

2,
66

3
65

8,
08

2
1,
93

7,
63

9
97

2,
45

0
1,
81

4,
20

6
7,
20

5,
04
0

W
at
er

Ar
ea

Fu
nd

Ca
se
/M

yr
tle

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

17
6,
50

0
17

6,
50

0
Ja
ck
so
n/
Sk
ill
m
an

Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

25
2,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
So
ut
h
Le
g
Pa
ve
m
en

tR
eh

ab
ili
ta
tio

n
76

,8
00

76
,8
00

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
C
Ar
ea

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

34
4,
00

0
34

4,
00

0
M
yr
tle

/S
te
rli
ng

Im
pr
ov
em

en
tP

ro
je
ct

19
4,
30

0
19

4,
30

0
Ea
st
Sh
or
e
Dr
iv
e
Ar
ea

St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

35
4,
00

0
35

4,
00

0
Pr
os
pe

rit
y
Ro

ad
St
re
et

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

27
1,
00

0
27

1,
00

0
W
al
te
r/
Be

am
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
61

,2
00

61
,2
00

M
ap
le
w
oo

d
Dr
./C

yp
re
ss
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
51

,9
00

51
,9
00

W
oo

dl
yn
n/
So
ut
hl
aw

n
Ar
ea

Pa
ve
m
en

t
21

3,
90

0
21

3,
90

0
To

ta
lW

at
er

Ar
ea

Fu
nd

40
8,
20

0
40

5,
90

0
34

7,
80

0
40

5,
20

0
42

8,
50

0
1,
99

5,
60
0

W
at
er
sh
ed

Ha
ze
lw
oo

d
Pa
rk

50
,0
00

50
,0
00

To
ta
lW

at
er
sh
ed

50
,0
00

50
,0
00

To
ta
lb
y
Fu
nd

in
g
So
ur
ce

12
,6
71

,9
71

14
,5
76

,8
0 0

12
,4
60

,4
84

14
,0
93

,8
50

10
,9
99

,0
50

64
,8
02

,1
55 E1, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 24 of 57



PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date July 19, 2022 

 
 

REPORT TO: Melinda Coleman, City Manager 
  
REPORT FROM: Michael Martin, AICP, Assistant Community Development Director 
  
PRESENTER: Michael Martin, AICP, Assistant Community Development Director 
  
AGENDA ITEM: Conditional Use Permit and Setback Variance Resolution, HAB 

Automotive, 47 Century Avenue North 
 
 
Action Requested:  Motion ☐ Discussion  Public Hearing 
Form of Action:  Resolution ☐ Ordinance ☐ Contract/Agreement ☐ Proclamation 
 
 
Policy Issue: 
Jesse Jacobson, of HAB Automotive, is requesting a conditional use permit and a setback variance 
to allow his auto maintenance garage business to be located at 47 Century Avenue North.   
 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to approve a resolution for a conditional use permit and a setback variance permitting an 
auto maintenance garage business to be located at 47 Century Avenue North.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Is There a Fiscal Impact?  No ☐ Yes, the true or estimated cost is $0 

Financing source(s): ☐ Adopted Budget ☐ Budget Modification ☐ New Revenue Source 
 ☐ Use of Reserves  Other:  N/A 
 
Strategic Plan Relevance: 
☐ Community Inclusiveness ☐ Financial & Asset Mgmt ☐ Environmental Stewardship  
☐ Integrated Communication  Operational Effectiveness ☐ Targeted Redevelopment  
 
The city deemed the applicant’s application complete on July 8, 2022. The initial 60-day review 
deadline for a decision is September 6, 2022. As stated in Minnesota State Statute 15.99, the city is 
allowed to take an additional 60 days if necessary to complete the review. 
 
Background: 
Jesse Jacobson, of HAB Automotive, is requesting approval of a conditional use permit (CUP) and 
a setback variance to permit an auto maintenance garage business. Auto maintenance garages 
require a CUP in the Business Commercial zoning district. The Business Commercial zoning district 
also requires that auto maintenance garages have a setback of at least 350 feet from any property 
the city is planning for residential use. Immediately to the west of this site are single-family homes.   
 
In 2020, the city approved plans for a dog daycare to operate within this building but the project did 
not move forward.   

E2

PC Packet Page Number 25 of 57



Conditional Use Permit  
 
In 1979 the city approved plans for the existing building to be constructed which was to house an 
auto parts store. An auto maintenance garage business was eventually added to the west side of 
the building. The previous auto maintenance garage business predated the current code 
requirements. The building has been vacant for several years, losing its nonconformance status 
and thus requiring a conditional use permit and variance in order to move forward with the current 
request.  
 
The applicant intends to use the site to perform mechanical repairs, calibrations, and diagnostics on 
vehicles that are already undergoing auto body repairs at one of their six Heppner's Auto Body & 
Glass locations. The applicant would keep the site and exterior of the building the same except for 
adding a chain-link fence to the south, and vehicle access gates to the north and south of the 
building to access the back lot. These gates will be setback from the front of the building.  
 
On the interior, the building will be broken into two distinct purposes. The rear (west) four service 
bays will stay the same for mechanical operations. The front two-thirds of the inside will be 
renovated to allow for a "clean room" for the calibration process that has a flat floor, open space, 
adjustable lighting, special paint, and non-reflective surfaces. The applicant also states that there 
will be no painting or auto body work performed at this location and that their hours will be 7:30 a.m. 
to 5:30 p.m.   
 
Setback Variance  
 
The Business Commercial zoning district requires auto maintenance garages have a setback of at 
least 350 feet from any property the city is planning for residential use. Immediately to the west of 
this site are single-family homes. A full 350-foot variance would be required in order for this project 
to move forward. Given the previous use of this site and building along with the applicant’s 
proposed use, staff is comfortable with approving the setback variance.  
 
Department Comments 
 
Engineering, Fire and Building 
 
No comments. 
 
Commission Review 
 
July 19, 2022: The planning commission will hold a public hearing and review this project.  
 
Citizen Comments 
 
Staff surveyed the 75 surrounding property owners within 500 feet of the proposed site for their 
opinion about this proposal. Staff did not receive any comments. 
 
Reference Information 
 
Site Description 
 
Campus Size:   0.96 acres 
Existing Land Use:  Vacant Building 
  

E2

PC Packet Page Number 26 of 57



Surrounding Land Uses 
 
North:   Century Ridge Apartments 
East:   Century Avenue/Residential Homes in Woodbury 
South:    Masala Restaurant, 27 Century Avenue South 
West:    Single Family Homes on Mayhill Road 
 
Planning 
 
Existing Land Use:  Mixed-Use - Community 
Existing Zoning:  Business Commercial (BC) 
 
Attachments: 
1. Conditional Use Permit and Setback Variance Resolution 
2. Overview Map 
3. 2040 Future Land Use Map 
4. Zoning Map 
5. Applicant’s Narrative 
6. Site Plan  
 
  

E2

PC Packet Page Number 27 of 57



CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AMENDMENT AND SETBACK VARIANCE RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Minnesota, as follows: 

Section 1. Background. 

1.01 Jesse Jacobson, of HAB Automotive, has requested approval of a conditional use 
permit to allow an auto maintenance garage.  

1.02 The applicant has also requested approval of a setback variance of 350 feet. 

1.03 The property is located at 47 Century Avenue North and is legally described as: 

Lot 15 of Wright’s Garden Lots Subject to Rd and Subject to Rd Exemption North 
725 feet and Exemption South 460 feet; Lot 15.  (PIN 01-28-22-14-0104) 

Section 2.   Standards.  

2.01 City Ordinance Section 44-512(8) requires auto maintenance garages have a 
conditional use permit and a 350-foot setback from any property the city is planning 
for residential use. 

2.02 General Conditional Use Permit Standards. City Ordinance Section 44-1097(a) 
states that the City Council must base approval of a Conditional Use Permit on the 
following nine standards for approval. 

1. The use would be located, designed, maintained, constructed and operated to be
in conformity with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Code of Ordinances.

2. The use would not change the existing or planned character of the surrounding
area.

3. The use would not depreciate property values.

4. The use would not involve any activity, process, materials, equipment or methods
of operation that would be dangerous, hazardous, detrimental, disturbing or
cause a nuisance to any person or property, because of excessive noise, glare,
smoke, dust, odor, fumes, water or air pollution, drainage, water run-off,
vibration, general unsightliness, electrical interference or other nuisances.

5. The use would not exceed the design standards of any affected street.

6. The use would be served by adequate public facilities and services, including
streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, water and sewer systems,
schools and parks.

7. The use would not create excessive additional costs for public facilities or
services.

8. The use would maximize the preservation of and incorporate the site’s natural
and scenic features into the development design.

E2, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 28 of 57



9. The use would cause minimal adverse environmental effects.

2.03 Variance Standard. City Ordinance Section 44-13 refers to state statute which states 
a variance may be granted from the requirements of the zoning ordinance when: (1) 
the variance is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this ordinance; (2) 
when the variance is consistent with the comprehensive plan; and (3) when the 
applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying with the 
ordinance. Practical difficulties mean: (1) The proposed use is reasonable; (2) the 
need for a variance is caused by circumstances unique to the property, not created 
by the property owner, and not solely based on economic conditions.  

Section 3. Findings. 

3.01 The proposal meets the specific conditional use permit standards. 

3.02 The proposal meets the specific variance standards.  

Section 4. City Review Process 

4.01 The City conducted the following review when considering this conditional use permit 
amendment and setback variance requests. 

1. On July 19, 2022, the planning commission held a public hearing. The city staff
published a hearing notice in the Pioneer Press and sent notices to the
surrounding property owners. The planning commission gave everyone at the
hearing a chance to speak and present written statements. The planning
commission recommended that the city council _______ this resolution.

2. On August 8, 2022 the city council discussed this resolution. They considered
reports and recommendations from the planning commission and city staff.

Section 5. City Council 

5.01 The city council hereby _______ the resolution. Approval is based on the findings 
outlined in section 3 of this resolution. Approval is subject to the following conditions: 

1. All construction shall follow the site plan approved by the City.

2. The proposed construction must be substantially started within one year of
Council approval or the permit shall become null and void. The Council may
extend this deadline for one year.

3. The City Council shall review this permit in one year.

4. There shall be no outdoor storage of any materials or equipment without
approval of a revised conditional use permit by the City Council.

5. No vehicles shall be stored in the front of the building.

6. Parking spaces in front of the building shall be properly marked and maintained.
Parking spaces are required to be 9 feet, 6 inches wide.

E2, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 29 of 57



7. The applicant shall submit a plan for staff approval to repair the trash enclosure
on site. The trash enclosure shall meet all ordinance requirements.

8. The parking lot shall be repaired and kept clear of debris.

9. All utilities serving the site shall be connected and maintained safely and
appropriately.

10. All signs require a separate sign permit and must meet city code requirements.

11. Any exterior improvements would require design approval.

12. A solid fence is required to be maintained and in place along the entire west
property line.

13. The business shall not be open to the public between the hours of 11:00 p.m.
and 6:00 a.m.

__________ by the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Minnesota, on August 8, 2022. 

E2, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 30 of 57



2680

2721
19

9

69

56

78

2670

70

22

16

28

22

42
4142

16

92

84

2689

47

2673

2709

2686 2692
2704

83
84

77
70

2715

2716

11

89

34
34

15

21

48

28

63

27

56

47

55

33

64
64

27

48

2709

21

47 Century Avenue North
City of Maplewood June 24, 2022

Legend
!I

0 240
Feet

Source: City of Maplewood, Ramsey County

Subject Property

E2, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 31 of 57

mmartin
Rectangle

mmartin
Rectangle



2680

2721
19

9

69

56

78

2670

70

22

16

28

22

42
4142

16

92

84

2689

47

2673

2709

2686 2692
2704

83
84

77
70

2715

2716

11

89

34
34

15

21

48

28

63

27

56

47

55

33

64
64

27

48

2709

21

47 Century Avenue North - Future Land Use
City of Maplewood June 24, 2022

Legend
!I

Future Land Use - 2040
Low Density Residential

Mixed-Use - Community

Public/Institutional

Subject Parcel

0 240
Feet

Source: City of Maplewood, Ramsey County

E2, Attachment 3

PC Packet Page Number 32 of 57

mmartin
Rectangle

mmartin
Rectangle



2680

2721
19

9

69

56

78

2670

70

22

16

28

22

42
4142

16

92

84

2689

47

2673

2709

2686 2692
2704

83
84

77
70

2715

2716

11

89

34
34

15

21

48

28

63

27

56

47

55

33

64
64

27

48

2709

21

47 Century Avenue North - Zoning
City of Maplewood June 24, 2022

Legend
!I

Zoning
Single Dwelling (r1)

Multiple Dwelling (r3)

Farm (f)

Business Commercial (bc)

Subject Parcel

0 240
Feet

Source: City of Maplewood, Ramsey County

E2, Attachment 4

PC Packet Page Number 33 of 57

mmartin
Rectangle

mmartin
Rectangle



E2, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 34 of 57



E2, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 35 of 57



E2, Attachment 6

PC Packet Page Number 36 of 57



PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date July 19, 2022 

 
 

REPORT TO: Melinda Coleman, City Manager  
  
REPORT FROM: Elizabeth Hammond, Planner 
  
PRESENTER: Elizabeth Hammond, Planner  
  
AGENDA ITEM: Conditional Use Permit Resolution, NeuroRestorative, 822 McKnight Road 

 
 
Action Requested:  Motion ☐ Discussion  Public Hearing 
Form of Action:  Resolution ☐ Ordinance ☐ Contract/Agreement ☐ Proclamation 
 
 
Policy Issue: 
NeuroRestorative has proposed constructing a single-dwelling home at 822 McKnight Road to 
operate a residential rehabilitation group home for persons with neurological injuries. City code 
requires a conditional use permit for residential programs unless exempt from state law. To move 
forward with the project, the applicant has requested approval of a conditional use permit.  
 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to approve a conditional use permit resolution for a residential group home at 822 McKnight 
Road, subject to certain conditions of approval.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Is There a Fiscal Impact?  No ☐ Yes, the true or estimated cost is $ 0.00 

Financing source(s): ☐ Adopted Budget ☐ Budget Modification ☐ New Revenue Source 
 ☐ Use of Reserves  Other:  n/a 
 
Strategic Plan Relevance: 
☐ Community Inclusiveness ☐ Financial & Asset Mgmt ☐ Environmental Stewardship  
☐ Integrated Communication  Operational Effectiveness ☐ Targeted Redevelopment  
 
The city deemed the applicant’s application complete on June 29, 2022. The initial 60-day review 
deadline for a decision is August 27, 2022. As stated in Minnesota State Statute 15.99, the city can 
take an additional 60 days if necessary to complete the review. 
 
Background: 
Project Overview 
NeuroRestorative (applicant) provides rehabilitation services for persons that have experienced a 
traumatic brain injury and currently operates residential homes in 26 states throughout the country. 
The applicant proposes constructing a residential home on the property at 822 McKnight Road, 
which is presently a vacant residential parcel. The company is expanding, and the proposed 

E3

PC Packet Page Number 37 of 57



Maplewood location would be the first in Minnesota. The home would incorporate ADA compliance 
elements and provide service for up to eight people.  
 
The applicant has completed a site survey and is working on designing the home. A preliminary site 
plan, elevations, and interior floor plan have been provided for consideration. The proposed plans 
appear to achieve city zoning and environmental code requirements. The applicant must submit a 
building permit application and additional plans to be reviewed by the city before construction.  
 
Commission and City Council Review 
Conditional Use Permit  
The City requires a conditional use permit for state-licensed facilities with more than six residents 
City Ordinance Section 44 – 1092 (3) requires a conditional use permit for residential programs 
unless exempt from state law. State law exempts residential programs from local zoning authority 
when care is provided for under six persons and licensed by the state of Minnesota. The 
proposed home would provide care for up to eight people and be licensed under the jurisdiction of 
the state of Minnesota. In this case, the proposed program is for eight people; accordingly, per 
city ordinance, it requires a conditional use permit.  
 
Staff has reviewed the proposal and believes the proposed use meets the requirements for 
approval of a conditional use permit. If the CUP is approved, the applicant will apply for a building 
permit to construct the home to city standards.  
 
The Planning Commission will review the conditional use permit on July 19, 2022.  
 
The City Council will review the project and make the final determination on the conditional use 
permit on August 8, 2022.  
 
Department Comments  
Engineering Department, John DuCharme  
The site might have issues with grading. The large hill in back and the proposed layout will make 
creating a workable grading plan challenging. Sewer and water are available in the ROW. 
 
Environmental Planner, Shann Finwall  
Please see the environmental report, dated July 5, 2022, attached to this report.  
 
Environmental Health, Molly Wellens  
The applicant shall obtain a license for the facility from the Minnesota Department of Health. A copy 
of the license must be provided to the City.  
 
Public Comments 
Staff sent a public hearing notice and application details to the properties within 500 feet of the 
subject property. No public comments were received.  
 
Reference Information 
Site Description  
Site Size:  1.18 Acres 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant   
 
Surrounding Land Uses  
North:   Single Dwelling Residential   
South:   Single Dwelling Residential 

E3

PC Packet Page Number 38 of 57



East:  Single Dwelling Residential    
West:  Single Dwelling Residential (City of St. Paul) 
 
Planning 
Existing Land Use: Low-Density Residential   
Existing Zoning: Single Dwelling Residential  
 
Attachments: 
1. Conditional Use Permit Resolution  
2. Overview Map  
3. Future Land Use Map 
4. Zoning Map 
5. Applicant’s Narrative 
6. Environmental Report Dated, July 5, 2022 
7. Building Elevations and Floorplan   
8.   Site Survey Stamped, June 29 (attached separately)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E3

PC Packet Page Number 39 of 57



CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT RESOLUTION  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Minnesota, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Background. 
 
1.01 NeuroRestorative has requested approval of a Conditional Use Permit for the 

property. 
 
1.02 The property is located at 822 McKnight Road and is legally described as: 

That part of the south 143.0 feet of the N1/2, SW1/4, NW1/4, NW1/4 of Section 13, 
T. 28, R. 22, Ramsey County, MN., lying westerly of the east 260.0 feet. Reserving 
and subject to an easement in favor of the public for roadway purposes over the west 
40.0 feet. Also reserving and subject to easements in favor of the City of Maplewood 
for drainage and utility purposes over the east 10.0 feet of the west 50.0 feet; the 
north and south 5.0 feet and the east 10.0 feet; and also lying easterly of the west 
50.0 feet and southerly and westerly of the following described line: commencing at 
the southwest corner of this parcel; thence northerly on the west line a distance of 
62.0 feet; thence easterly, parcel with the south line a distance of 50.0 feet to the 
point of beginning of the line being described; thence continue easterly, parallel with 
the south line a distance of 44.0 feet; thence southeasterly to a point on the south 
line distant 123.0 feet from the point of commencement and there terminate. 
PID: 132822220090 

 
1.03 City Ordinance Section 44 – 1092 (3) requires a Conditional Use Permit for 

residential programs that are not exempt from state law.  
 

Section 2.       Standards.  
 
2.01  General Conditional Use Permit Standards. City Ordinance Section 44-1097(a) 

states that the City Council must base approval of a Conditional Use Permit on the 
following nine standards for approval. 

 
1. The use would be located, designed, maintained, constructed and operated to be 

in conformity with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Code of Ordinances. 
 

2. The use would not change the existing or planned character of the surrounding 
area. 

 
3. The use would not depreciate property values. 

 
4. The use would not involve any activity, process, materials, equipment or methods 

of operation that would be dangerous, hazardous, detrimental, disturbing or 
cause a nuisance to any person or property, because of excessive noise, glare, 
smoke, dust, odor, fumes, water or air pollution, drainage, water run-off, 
vibration, general unsightliness, electrical interference or other nuisances. 
 

5. The use would not exceed the design standards of any affected street. 
 

E3, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 40 of 57



6. The use would be served by adequate public facilities and services, including 
streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, water and sewer systems, 
schools and parks. 
 

7. The use would not create excessive additional costs for public facilities or 
services. 
 

8. The use would maximize the preservation of and incorporate the site’s natural 
and scenic features into the development design. 
 

9. The use would cause minimal adverse environmental effects. 
 

Section 3.  Findings. 
 
3.01  The proposal meets the specific Conditional Use Permit standards. 

 
Section 4.  City Review Process 
 
4.01 The City conducted the following review when considering this conditional use permit 

request.  
 

1. On July 19, 2022, the Planning Commission held a public hearing. City staff 
published a hearing notice in the Pioneer Press and sent notices to the 
surrounding property owners. The Planning Commission gave everyone at the 
hearing a chance to speak and present written statements. The Planning 
Commission recommended that the City Council ________ this resolution. 

 
2. On August 8, 2022, the City Council discussed this resolution. They considered 

reports and recommendations from the planning commission and City staff. 
 
Section 5. City Council  
 
5.01 The City Council hereby _______ the resolution. Approval is based on the findings 

outlined in section 3 of this resolution. Approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The proposed construction must be substantially started within one year of 
council approval, or the permit shall become null and void. 
 

2. The city council shall review this permit in one year. 
 

3. The proposed single-dwelling home must achieve all city code requirements. The 
applicant is required to obtain a building permit before construction.  

 
4. The applicant shall provide a copy of the license issued by the state of 

Minnesota, allowing for the operation of an assisted living home on the property.   
 

5. The applicant shall meet the conditions outlined in Environmental Report dated 
July 5, 2022.  

 

E3, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 41 of 57



_______________ by the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Minnesota, on August 8, 2022. 
 
 
 
 

E3, Attachment 1

PC Packet Page Number 42 of 57



����������	
����������������	����������	
������ ���������

������  !
" #$"%&&'()*+,-.�/012�)3�4567-8))9:�;5<=-2�/)*>12

Subject Parcel 

E3, Attachment 2

PC Packet Page Number 43 of 57

ehammond
Polygonal Line

ehammond
Rectangle



���������	
����������������	��������
���������������
 ������� ��!��

����	
 "#���������	
��������!$!%&'�()*+,-.�/)+,0)*-,123 4536))-789:;<=�>?@A�8B�CDEF<G88HI�JDKL<A�>89M@ASubject Parcel 

E3, Attachment 3

PC Packet Page Number 44 of 57

ehammond
Polygonal Line

ehammond
Rectangle



���������	�
���������������������������	������ �������������

������ � ������ !"#$%&�'(&%%"#$�)*+,- +.-/&&01234567�89:;�2<�=>?@6A22BC�D>EF6;�823G:;Subject Parcel 

E3, Attachment 4

PC Packet Page Number 45 of 57

ehammond
Polygonal Line

ehammond
Rectangle



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 46 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 47 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 48 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 49 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 50 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 51 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 52 of 57



E3, Attachment 5

PC Packet Page Number 53 of 57



Environmental Review 
Project: 

Date of Plans: 

Date of Review: 

Location: 

Reviewer:  

Residential Rehabilitation Home – Development of a Single Family Lot t 

June 24, 2022 Site Plan for a New Single Family House  

July 5, 2022 

822 McKnight Road South 

Shann Finwall, Environmental Planner  

Project Background:  The applicant is proposing to develop the vacant lot at 822 McKnight 
Road South with a single-family house.  The applicant will operate a residential rehabilitation 
program out of the single-family house.  The City requires a conditional use permit for the 
residential rehabilitation program.   

The single-family lot has a Manage A wetland and significant trees located on the lot.  
Development of the lot must comply with the City’s wetland and tree ordinances.  The 
environmental review addresses the wetland and tree ordinance regulations, not the use of the 
single-family house for a residential rehabilitation program.    

Lot Division:  The City approved a lot division of 824 McKnight Road South in 2017.  The lot 
division created two buildable lots with access onto McKnight Road South, and one smaller lot 
that was combined with an adjacent property at 829 Dorland Road South.  The attached lot 
division approval letter outlines conditions of approval including:   

1. The new house can only be accessed from the existing driveway.  A new or expanded
driveway would require a variance to the City’s wetland ordinance.

2. Development of the lot must comply with the City’s tree and wetland ordinance.

Trees:  The City’s tree ordinance requires that the applicant submit a tree plan showing all 
significant trees on the lot, and which of those trees will be removed with development of the 
single-family house.  A significant tree is defined as a hardwood tree 6 inches or larger, conifer 
tree 8 inches or larger, and a softwood tree 12 inches or larger.  With this information the City 
can determine whether tree replacement would be required based on the City’s tree 
replacement calculation.    

Wetlands:  The City’s wetland ordinance requires a 100-foot buffer be maintained around a 
Manage A wetland.  That buffer can be reduced to 75 feet, if a 100-foot average buffer is 
maintained (increase in buffer in other areas to average 100 feet). 

Recommendations:  

1. Prior to issuance of a grading permit for a new single-family house the applicant must
submit the following:

a. Driveway Plan:  A detailed driveway plan showing that the new house is being
accessed using the existing driveway and that there is no additional
encroachment toward the Manage A wetland.  The applicant can improve the

E3, Attachment 6

PC Packet Page Number 54 of 57



driveway with pavement, but no expansion of the driveway toward the wetland is 
permitted without a variance to the City’s wetland ordinance.     

b. Tree Plan:  A tree plan showing the size, species, and location of all significant 
trees and which of those trees will be removed with the development of the lot.  If 
significant trees have been removed since the approval of the lot division, a tree 
plan showing all remaining significant trees, and significant tree stumps with the 
best estimate of tree size and species. 

c. Wetland Buffer Plan:  A detailed grading plan showing that there is no grading 
within the 100-foot wetland buffer.  Alternatively, if grading occurs up to the 75-
foot minimum buffer, the applicant must submit: 

1) a detailed wetland buffer-averaging plan showing where the buffer will be 
increased to ensure an average of 100-foot buffer; 

2) wetland buffer mitigation plan to include native plantings within the buffer.   

d. Wetland Buffer Signs:  Wetland buffer signs must be installed along the approved 
wetland buffer edge identifying that no mowing, cutting, grading, or building is 
allowed. 

e. Tree and/or Wetland Buffer Escrow:  Tree and/or a wetland buffer escrow may 
be required if tree replacement is required and/or a wetland mitigation plan is 
required.   

 

   

2

E3, Attachment 6

PC Packet Page Number 55 of 57



E3, Attachment 7

PC Packet Page Number 56 of 57



E3, Attachment 7

PC Packet Page Number 57 of 57


	2022 07-19 Planning Commission Agenda
	D1 2022-05-17 PC Minutes_DRAFT
	E1 Capital Improvement Plan 2023-2027
	E2 Conditional Use Permit and Setback Variance Resolution, HAB Automotive, 47 Century Avenue North
	E3 Conditional Use Permit Resolution, NeuroRestorative, 822 McKnight Road



